
Meeting Minutes
THE REGULAR MEETING of the PLANNING BOARD of the Town of Cortlandt was conducted at the Town Hall, 1 Heady St., Cortlandt Manor, NY on Wednesday, September 7th, 2011.  The meeting was called to order, and began with the Pledge of Allegiance.

Loretta Taylor, Chairperson presided and other members of the Board were in attendance as follows:




John Bernard, Vice-Chairperson 



Thomas A. Bianchi, Board Member 




Steven Kessler, Board Member 



Robert Foley, Board Member (absent)
Jeff Rothfeder, Board Member
Peter Daly, Board Member 


ALSO PRESENT:




John J. Klarl, Esq., Deputy Town Attorney

 



Ed Vergano, Director Department of Technical Services 



Chris Kehoe, Planning Department  




Tom Wood, Esq., Town Attorney 


*



*



*

CHANGES TO THE AGENDA:

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we have one change for the agenda it’s the addition PB 13-11.  It concerns the remodeling of the exterior of the Lou’s Corner Deli.  It will go at the end of our ‘correspondence’ section.


*



*



*

ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS OF AUGUST 2, 2011
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked may I have a motion to adopt the minutes of August 2nd?
So moved, seconded with all in favor saying "aye."



*



*



*

CORRESPONDENCE
PB 9-09      a.
Letter dated August 23, 2011 from David Steinmetz, Esq. transmitting a report prepared by Fitzpatrick Engineering, LLC summarizing the truck activity at the Brookfield site for the months of April – July 2011 as required by the Traffic Monitoring Protocol adopted for the Brookfield application located on Albany Post Road.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chair I move that we receive and file the correspondence.
Seconded.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated and we did receive a letter from our consultant as well.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated just for the record that as was discussed at the work session that they’re going to undertake the Protocol now rather than November.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated that’s true.  Let me just say that the letter from our traffic consultant, John Canning suggested that because traffic at the site was a good deal heavier than had been anticipated that we actually move up the actual adoption of this Protocol and implement it a lot sooner than we had thought we would.  You want to say something Ed?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded I just want to mention that we were planning on implementing the full Protocol in November but we’re moving it up based on the numbers that we’ve received recently from the consultant and verified by our consultant makes sense.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated he also suggested that we start as early as possible but, no later than November.  That is a piece of very interesting news.  We’ll see what the Protocol actually finds.

With all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 18-07    b.
Letter dated August 1 2011 from John Lentini, RA requesting the 2nd one-year time extension of Site Development Plan Approval and Special Permit and to modify condition #11 of Planning board Resolution 31-09 for the Food Stop Convenience Store/Gas Station located at 2225 Crompond Road (Route 202).

Mr. Peter Daly stated Madame Chairwoman I move that we adopt Resolution 21-11.
Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 12-94    c.
Letter dated August 18, 2011 from Peter Amara, AIA requesting Planning Board Approval of proposed façade alterations for the west façade of Building “D” at Cortlandt Town Center for DSW Shoes.

Mr. John Bernard stated Madame Chairwoman I move that we approve this application by motion.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated the recommendation is that we approve by motion.

Seconded.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I am going to be voting ‘no’ to this.  I am not of the opinion that that change in the façade is necessarily better.  It’s newer, it’s different but for me new is not necessarily – or different even is not necessarily better and I don’t see, quite frankly, what it adds.  I am not inclined to go for that change.  That’s on the question.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked “all in favor?”  “Aye.”  “No.”
Mr. Chris Kehoe polled the Board Mr. Rothfeder; aye, Mr. Kessler; aye, Mr. Bianchi; aye, Ms. Taylor; no, Mr. Bernard; aye, Mr. Daly; aye, 5 to 1.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated that motion passes.

PB 5-08      d.
Letter dated August 15, 2011 from Barbara Montes requesting the 6th six-month time extension of Preliminary Plat approval for the Montes Subdivision located on Radio Terrace.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Madame Chairwoman I move that we adopt Resolution #22-11 approving the extension.
Seconded.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I did talk to the applicant and alerted her that this is her last time extension.  She’s aware of that.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you for doing that.

With all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 21-05    e.
Letter dated August 24, 2011 from Jesse Stackhouse requesting the 5th ninety-day time extension of Final Plat approval for the Hillside Estates subdivision located on Locust Avenue.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated Madame Chair I move that we adopt Resolution 23-11.
Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 25-93    f.
Letter dated August 21, 2011 from William Balter requesting Planning Board Approval of changes to the location of the recreation area and the addition of a stone façade to the 1st floor of the proposed buildings for the Roundtop development located on Albany Post Road (Route 9A).

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked you’re here Bill.  Did you need to say anything on this?
Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chair I move that we approve the changes.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’ll have to approve this by motion.

Seconded.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated you do have in your packets that the ARC signed off on the stone façade.  

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded yes, we got that tonight, that’s true.

With all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 13-11    g.
Letter from Lou’s Deli.  They are seeking approval for some new designs for the exterior of their business.  

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated apparently tonight, we also got a letter that the ARC has signed off on it.  They are in favor of those particular changes to the exterior.  Is there anybody who has anything that needs addressing on this one?

Mr. Peter Daly stated Madame Chairwoman I move that we approve this.

Seconded.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’re going to approve by motion.

With all in favor saying "aye." 



*



*



*
PUBLIC HEARINGS (NEW)

PB 5-11      a.
Application of Hollowbrook Golf Club for Site Development Plan approval and a Special Permit for a proposed 1,600 square foot pool, a 1,500 square foot two-story bridal suite and locker room building, a 288 sq. ft. snack bar and other landscaping and amenities located at the Hollowbrook Golf Club at 1600 Oregon Road as shown on an 8 page set of drawings entitled “Hollowbrook Golf Club Accessory Pool Area” prepared by Alvin Adler, P.E. latest revision dated August 10, 2011 (see prior PBs 16-99 and 38-06).

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated this is a public hearing.  If there is anyone in the audience who has a comment or a concern that they wish to make, now is the time.
Mr. Bill Sattler stated with Adler Engineering.  I’m an Engineer here representing the Hollowbrook Golf Club.  We are proposing a pool and a snack bar, a jungle gym, a kiddy pool and a locker building as an expansion of the existing use of the golf club.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated please come up, identify yourself for the record.
Ms. Sue McDonnell stated I live on Susan Lane in the Town of Cortlandt.  I have a couple of questions that I’ve been to several of the hearings of the golf course and I’m confused about that for one thing but there are also some things that I’d like to ask about.  First of all, when this was originally proposed back in the early part of the 2002, 2003, there was to be a golf course and housing.  The housing I know was separated off but it was a golf course and then all of a sudden it became, somewhere down the line, it became mixed with a golf club and a golf course and then reading through the papers, now it’s a Golf Club.  And, I know that there is a distinction.  I wonder was there ever any separate distinction made in the papers that it is now a golf club as opposed to a golf course?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded according to the letter that our Town Attorney has written to clarify that, no, there was nothing specific in the filing papers or in the actual proceedings, however, and Tom Wood is here he can speak for himself, there appears to be a general consensus on the interpretation about what a golf club is.  So, any golf club could include such amenities as a pool, restaurants, that kind of thing to make things more convenient for members.  There are specifically – and I think he mentioned something like Anderson’s or something like that.  This is where lawyers go to look for general interpretations, generally accepted interpretations of what a golf course is.

Mr. Bill Sattler stated that’s generally true but membership is not exclusive so if you wanted to apply for membership your application would be considered as seriously as anyone else applying for membership.

Ms. Sue McDonnell stated that was part of my question having to do with this because understanding of a golf course is a place where somebody owns it and you pay a fee to play golf and a golf club requires membership.  So, if you’re saying it’s a hybrid between the two.  Is that correct?

Mr. Bill Sattler responded no, I’m saying it is a golf club but your membership would be considered at the same level as other applicants.

Ms. Sue McDonnell stated okay, I’m still confused.  Are the people who play golf members of the club that have to pay a yearly fee to be members?

Mr. Bill Sattler responded yes, unless they’re a guest of a member.

Ms. Sue McDonnell stated but I could apply for membership but I couldn’t necessarily come and just ask if I could play a round of golf.

Mr. Mr. Ken Bitkjorn responded a Town resident.

Ms. Sue McDonnell stated let’s say I’m not a Town resident.  A golf course in my understanding is a place that is owned by some kind of a corporation or something or an individual who allows people to come, pay a fee for the day and go play golf.  A golf club on the other hand, in the management structure, as I understand it is owned by a corporation or a large group and the people who play golf on a regular basis are members of that group as opposed to paying by the day.  What you’re saying is if I…

Mr. Mr. Ken Bitkjorn stated a Town resident can come and pay a fee but everybody else is a member and you pay fee.

Ms. Sue McDonnell asked so that makes it a golf club?  Is that right?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded I think you’re differentiating a public versus a private golf club.  So, like Mohansic which is a public golf course, anybody can go and pay a fee to avail yourself of their golf course you would have to become a member of the club and pay annual dues and whatever and become a member.
Ms. Sue McDonnell stated those are good examples Steve, thank you, that was exactly what I was getting at.  Somewhere along this line this started out as a golf course and it has now become a golf club.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I believe it – well, originally, if you go way back it started as a semi-public course and then when it was finally approved, the applicant wanted to make it a private golf club.  So, when we approved it, it was approved as a private golf club with the stipulation that Town members, during certain days and certain hours, had the ability to play rounds of golf at that club, if you were a Town resident as I said.

Ms. Sue McDonnell stated that’s what I was getting at because it was confusing from reading the first – and I was here when you this whole thing first started and I know that – that was my question and my question was: how did it become that? And, you’re saying that….

Mr. Steven Kessler responded the original approval was then as a private golf club.

Ms. Sue McDonnell asked the original approval was a semi-private?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded no, the original application was semi-private but during the course of the approval process the owners decided to make it a private golf club and it was approved finally as a private golf club.

Ms. Sue McDonnell stated thank you.  That brings me to another question.  The Planning Board is lead agency on the Golf Club.  There’s a section somewhere in some of these that basically says that when the papers are submitted for approval they have to be approved by the Planning Board and by the Department of Law.  After the Department of Law has seen them and made a suggestion on some of the changes, do those then come back to the Planning Board or are they just written and passed on?

Mr. Tom Wood responded what happens in the approval process after the Planning Board approves it, the conditions are then gone over by the Engineering, Planning and Legal Department, everything is satisfied.  At that point, the Chair person of the Board comes in, reviews it and signs the Mylar to be signed.

Ms. Sue McDonnell asked rather than going back to the entire Board?

Mr. Tom Wood responded the only time it’s referred back to the Planning Board is if any of their conditions cannot be met by the applicant then it goes back to the Planning Board for further review and consideration.

Ms. Sue McDonnell asked can I nit-pick just a little bit?  What kind of changes would you make that would…

Mr. Tom Wood responded anything that doesn’t comply with the intent of the Planning Board Resolution.

Mr. John Klarl stated or Law.

Ms. Sue McDonnell continued but the Planning Board has passed the Resolution onto you so they would…

Mr. Tom Wood stated the Resolution, in this case, I can answer a couple of your questions that you started with, as Mr. Kessler pointed out when the application was made there was talk that it would be open to the public.  It was approved and the Planning Board Resolution approved it as a golf club and the map that is filed that was signed by the Chairman has the exact language that was in the approval Resolution that was voted on by the Planning Board, word for word “a golf club.”  The Town Board at the time also amended the Town Zoning Ordinance which allowed for golf courses in residential district as membership clubs.  So, this golf course is limited to membership and members using it except that one of the other conditions of the Planning Board was that there be an agreement entered into with the Town allowing residents of the Town to utilize the golf course for a certain amount of rounds, which there is an agreement that was approved by the Town Board and signed by the Supervisor and recorded against the property.

Ms. Sue McDonnell asked another question.  The question has to do with the proposals that are there now.  Off and on you’ve talked about – no I won’t go to that one.  In the original request you asked for two pools; a large pool and a kiddy pool.  I did not see the kiddy pool and I sat through many of these meetings and I never heard a word about the kiddy pool, it was only the big pool.  Are you still including the kiddy pool?

Mr. Bill Satler responded yes we are and that is shown on the site map.

Ms. Sue McDonnell asked so then it will be in the Resolution because I hadn’t heard anything about a kiddy pool and I kept wondering about…

Mr. Ken Bitkjorn stated they’re on the plans but either it’s going to be a kiddy pool or a spray pad and those are the things that we’re still trying to figure out.  It’s either one.

Ms. Sue McDonnell responded because the pool is going to go from three feet to five feet and I would never put a small child in three feet of water.

Mr. Bill Sattler responded this would be the main pool and there’s the kiddy pool.

Ms. Sue McDonnell asked where’s the jungle gym?

Mr. Bill Sattler responded over here.

Ms. Sue McDonnell stated I’m sorry, I couldn’t find my one sheet of notes which are copies of yours.  The footprint of all of that how many square feet is that?

Mr. Bill Satler responded I would say less than a half acre.

Ms. Sue McDonald asked that would be 20,000 square feet?  An acre is 40,000.

Mr. Bill Sattler responded give or take.  An acre is about 40,000, this is less than that.
Mr. Ken Bitkjorn stated I just want make this clear so that you see.  This is the whole layout.  I don’t know if we can get. 

Ms. Sue McDonnell asked Chris, do you have these?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded no, I apologize we only have the elevations that are up there. You’d have to look at the hard copy.

Mr. Ken Bitkjorn stated here’s the pool and then here’s the spray pad.  It’s either or.  There’s the snack shop, jungle gym.  This is the building here and then the pool is here. 

Mr. Bill Satler stated when you come in, there’s a snack bar there which is a checkpoint of entry so we can keep track of population entering and leaving, jungle gym, the locker building, the main pool, and the kiddy pool.

Ms. Sue McDonnell asked there is one other question that I would like to ask and that has to do with the original Resolution that because this is a CEA and because of the amount of open space that is treated with chemicals.  Where are the chemicals going to be stored?  I know you talked about it once before but I’ve forgotten.

Mr. Bill Satler responded all of the chemicals for the swimming pool, which would be sodium hyperchloride or calcium hyperchloride, soda ash or uric acid to adjust the pH of the water, all would be stored in the basement of the locker building. 

Ms. Sue McDonnell asked inside, under lock and key?

Mr. Bill Satler responded yes.

Ms. Sue McDonnell asked in the Resolution, the approving Resolution to begin with, it said that once the plans were approved that there would be no more building.  I know this is a small piece, but I think that that’s never really been – I haven’t heard that talked about the fact that there was to be no more building and this is more building, this is a bigger footprint, this is not as the Resolution was originally passed.  And, I’m going to leave my comment to that.

Mr. Tom Wood stated well, I can comment on that because that was raised.  Apparently there’s been some confusion.  This was a subdivision.  The original proposal was for a hundred some odd parcels, through series of meetings, it was reduced to the 80 some odd townhouse units and I think four or five residential lots.  In order to make that project happen the Town Board granted to the Planning Board cluster authority.  Cluster authority is the right to take all of the building development potential in the Zoning, the number of lots, and cluster them together into smaller pieces.  This was approved by powers of the New York State Town Law section 280a.  It is noted on the map that was filed which restricts the property that there be no further building in the terms of no other lots can be created.  So, they can’t get another house or another condo, however, by virtue of the Town Zoning Ordinance there’s a Special Permit provision which allows for – and the Town Board did allow for the golf course and golf club to be in the Open Space area that was created.  There’s no restriction other than a 25% lot coverage in the Special Permit with respect to the amount of building, etc that could take place, that is a golf club.
Ms. Sue McDonnell asked are you saying that 25% of the golf course could be built on?

Mr. Tom Wood responded under the present Special Permit, lot coverage is limited to 25% of the golf lot.
Ms. Sue McDonnell responded the CEA means Critical Environmental Area.

Mr. Tom Wood stated CEA is a term that applies to the SEQRA process.  So, under the SEQRA process, if an area is created, a CEA and we have several in the Town, it just means that the Planning Board or whoever is the lead agency, must consider it in a high level of prior review with the long form instead of the short form, etc.  That’s what a CEA (Critical Environmental Area) status does.

Ms. Sue McDonnell stated if that’s the case then that needs to be revisited because that’s going to be the death of a million cuts. 

Mr. Tom Wood stated well CEA is under the State SEQRA rules.  That’s by the Commissioner of Environmental Conservation.

Ms. Sue McDonnell stated yes, but it is a CEA and the reason is because it borders a drinking water site.

Mr. Tom Wood stated correct, and we – I think Chris spoke to the County Planning Commissioner today and confirmed that with this type of project the documents that the Planning Board have would meet the requirements of the CEA.

Mr. John Klarl stated you’re absolutely right.  Some years ago we looked at it a little differently.  We used to have Zoning Board meetings where we had something in a Critical Environmental Area, Peekskill Hollowbrook for example and we used to take a type II action and we would be elevated to type I because of being in the CEA.  That’s been changed a couple of years ago and that doesn’t occur.

Ms. Sue McDonnell stated I know.  I talked to a SEQRA specialist also but my concern still is for the water, for the drinking water and chemicals are used, impervious surfaces are built and they take up the water drainage.  I live on a well.  I know how important knowing that you’ve got water around you and not from the lake or anyplace else but water that drains from the rocks and comes out clean, that’s really important and I just see this as another step, and another step and I really need think that you need to address that and do something about it.  Thank you.

Mr. Bill Sattler stated I can answer a question because it was raised at the last meeting, to prove mathematically that the swimming pool would not be a danger to the Hollowbrook.  We came up with an area of 320 linear feet by 2,500 linear feet at an average depth of 8 foot so it would reach the enclosure of the Hollowbrook which comes out to over 2 ½ million gallons of water.  So, a 48,000 gallon swimming pool, a drop of it, wouldn’t come within hundreds of yards of the Hollowbrook were it to burst.  So, I don’t quite understand the concern.

Mr. John Bernard stated I don’t understand your mathematical computation either.  Water percolates through the ground.  You don’t need to have a catastrophic flood to have some of that swimming pool water…

Mr. Bill Sattler stated we’re talking about clean water to begin with and the earth itself is a natural filter.

Mr. John Bernard asked okay?  And, it filters completely?  So, that nothing should ever get into the Hollowbrook except pure water, ever, from anywhere.

Mr. Bill Sattler stated most sewer systems such as the sand filter system that contributes water directly into a stream, theoretically is almost pure drinking water.

Mr. John Bernard stated I appreciate your theoretical theorems but I also know that in New York State and in every other state in the country something gets in the water because there’s not one state in the country that will allow a pregnant woman to eat fish.  Not one body of water in the United States where you can actually eat a fish if you’re a pregnant woman.  You shouldn’t.  You can but you shouldn’t.  So, how do you suppose anything gets in the water…

Mr. Bill Sattler responded mostly because there’s concerns of mercury.

Mr. John Bernard stated it’s not mercury it’s everything.  I think you need to go back to the library.  Forgive me but something’s not right here.  Just retract your mathematical theorem I think would be the best right now for what you just said.  That nothing could possibly get into the Hollowbrook from that swimming pool because it would take a catastrophic flood to do so.  That’s not correct.

Mr. Bill Sattler stated I take exception to that because it would take considerable forces, beyond nature for this water to enter the Hollowbrook in such a way where it would destruct the quality of the water.  I could win a lottery ticket the first time I buy the lottery ticket but it’s highly unlikely.

Mr. John Bernard stated everybody is welcome to their opinion and you’re certainly welcome to your opinion and we appreciate it.

Mr. Bill Sattler stated but I can prove it mathematically.

Mr. John Bernard stated please.  You’re treading on thin ice, unfrozen water.

Mr. Bill Sattler stated I’m trying to work with you, not against you.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked can we move this along because you’re never going to convince John, that your math is correct.  We can move to the next speaker and maybe they will have some issues that you can address and hopefully move this along.

Ms. Karen Jescavage-Bernard stated and like Susan, I’m here on behalf of concerns that have been brought up before Cortlandt Watch who asked us to bring them before you.  I wanted to get to the point of the original conditions of approval.  Many of the Board members who were here when this original application was presented will remember that Cortlandt Watch had concerns as did the Citizen’s Organization called Hollowbrook Water Watch, because the golf course and the then housing were going to be built right near a source of public drinking water.  The Citizen’s Groups were left with the impression, after the applicant was approved that there would be no more building on the golf course portion of that property and whatever the cluster of the dwellings would be that would be on that property.  Now, apparently that’s not correct.  If I understood Mr. Wood correctly, up to 25% of the golf course portion of the site can be built on.  Did I understand you correctly?

Mr. Tom Wood responded every Zoning district, every Zoning area has a lot coverage provision.  The one that governs membership clubs, golf courses, such as this, says 25% lot coverage, so theoretically you’re correct.  There was no limitation on the square footage of building as far as the golf club was concerned.

Ms. Karen Jescavage-Bernard stated that’s where it stands as of right now before this application goes forward.

Mr. Tom Wood responded right.

Ms. Karen Jescavage-Bernard asked do either of the Town Engineer or the Town Planner know how close to 25% coverage, or what the actual coverage is of the existing facilities combined with a proposed facility?  How close to the 25% are they?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded that’s a question for the Engineer.  I don’t have the table in front of me.  It should be on your plan.

Mr. Bill Sattler responded less than 5%.

Ms. Karen Jescavage-Bernard stated less than 5%, so they theoretically can cover 20 more percent and still be in compliance with the approval and the 23 conditions that were placed on the approval.

Mr. Tom Wood responded but that’s not carte blanche because obviously any increase would be subject to SEQRA review and any environmental issues that that additional coverage would be MS4 for storm water.  All of those other rules have an impact on the gross coverage. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated with any additional coverage would have to be associated with the golf facilities because the development potential of the site has been eliminated because it’s a cluster subdivision but additional amenities with the golf course, adding on to the club house, something like that would be possible subject to the approval of the Planning Board.  The building of additional houses, putting additional density there is not possible.

Ms. Karen Jescavage-Bernard asked so it would have to be related to the golf course itself, or the golf club itself?

Mr. Tom Wood responded just as if one of these single family homes that were built, if they wanted to do an addition they’re subject to lot coverage for a single family home requirement.

Mr. Bill Sattler stated I would like to reiterate that not just buildings but any impervious surface.

Ms. Karen Jescavage-Bernard asked parking lots and things like that?

Mr. Bill Satler responded any impervious surface is also included in that restriction.

Ms. Karen Jescavage-Bernard asked so the understanding of the citizens then is incorrect that there would not be anymore building on the golf course portion.

Mr. Tom Wood stated well, you keep saying building, building in Zoning, in the cluster Zoning, building is the development potential, the number of units you can have.

Ms. Karen Jescavage-Bernard stated no, I’m not talking about the cluster of the housing portion.  I’m talking about…

Mr. Tom Wood continued that has been removed from the property.  So, if you mean building in that sense, that’s eliminated.

Ms. Karen Jescavage-Bernard responded no.

Mr. Tom Wood stated the structure of the clubhouse is not limited except by the things that I previously explained to you.

Ms. Karen Jescavage-Bernard stated that was the answer to my question.  Thank you.

Ms. Drew Claxton stated I’m a Councilwoman for the City of Peekskill, I also founded Citizens for Equal Environmental Protection.  I have to say that I did participate in the planning of this development and I am disappointed to be here again addressing this application.  When we went through this planning process, initially, people were very concerned about the fact that this was a golf course, yes the housing was being built, but also that this was a golf course with chemicals, etc, that directly bounded and was directly next to our Hollowbrook watershed.  This is the drinking water, the source of drinking water for 25,000 people, the City of Peekskill, people in Verplanck, some people in Cortlandt, other areas of Cortlandt.  I felt, at that time, that the Planning Commission did everything that it could and could have done a little bit more but really paid attention to the fact that this was next to the Hollowbrook, that it could impact the Hollowbrook and really took care to limit the number of housing, the number of units to make sure that the golf course was limited, to make sure that we had chemical testing.  It used to be three times a year, it’s now only two times a year and now we’re back.  And, I have to say that it was not my understanding , as we went through this process, that any further development could be done on that property, whether it be on the golf course portion or not the golf course portion.  Mr. Wood, I do have your letter to the Planning Commission and I do have to say that you do state here that since at the time this map was filed there was litigation pending that could have affected the validity of notes on file maps.  A declaration of covenance and restrictions was filed, which is entitled “no further building on the golf course.”  Now, while it referenced a Resolution that was the note; “no further building on the golf course.”  Now, my understanding is this is in fact being built on the golf course which is against the note that was filed.  I just want to put it out there that this is a Critical Environmental Area.  Only a short form environmental assessment has been done.  This is not a long form, as you just suggested needs to be done that we are talking about the drinking water source of 25,000 people.  The City of Peekskill, because of poor development processes along our Hollowbrook has just spent 32 million dollars to build a filtration plant in order to keep our water clean and when it gets too bad that filtration plant still needs to get closed.  I would really caution this because, as Mr. Wood’s letter also suggested, was this is not a change of use because you can look at other golf courses and you can see that other golf clubs, as our Mayor would say that’s probably a country club not a golf club and there is a distinction there.  The fact that other golf clubs have pools and a 15 – I don’t know that other golf clubs also have a 1,500 square foot bridal suite, but I would expect that if you surveyed golf clubs around the country you could find a number of other uses and a number of other reasons why you could expand this.  Again, I would say that that is against the spirit of what this Commission did and against the spirit of what we participated in years ago when we said “sure, we’ll accept what has gone forward here.  We support it because you really worked to do some protection and to do some limitation to what’s going on here.”  I am really disappointed to be back here.  Say what you want, this is my statement.  I am really, really disappointed to be back here because this is against the spirit of what happened those years ago.
Mr. Tom Wood asked Madame Chair could I ask the Councilwoman a question?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded yes, please do.

Mr. Tom Wood asked would you mind if I asked you one question?  When we built our water filtration plant that is the Northern Westchester Joint Water Works because all communities were required to do it if you have surface water, we use New York City Aqueduct water which is, I would think, very well protected.  We use chemicals in our treatment process including chlorine, and other matters, all subject to Health Department approval.  Does your plant now in Peekskill that was constructed since this golf course was approved, do you use chemicals in the treatment of the water?

Ms. Drew Claxton responded I expect that we do, yes but I would say that if you were in the New York City watershed this project would not be going forward and it is unfortunate that the Peekskill watershed doesn’t have the backing and the money to protect its watershed in the same way as the New York City watershed.

Mr. Tom Wood stated but we all had to put the treatment facilities either for your water quality or ours. 

Ms. Drew Claxton stated the reality is this is against the spirit and your note saying “no further building.”  The note says “no further building on the golf course.”  It does not say part of the golf course, it says “on the golf course.”  If you want to build it in the middle of the street, go ahead, but that’s not what these papers say.

Mr. Bill Satler stated the restrictions from three times a month to twice a month was at the decision of the DEP which governs the protected waterway.

Ms. Drew Claxton stated no, the DEP does not protect our waterway.  That’s the New York City.  We are the Peekskill watershed.  If we were in the New York City watershed, this whole development would be different, let alone an expansion of this development.

Mr. Andrew Fischer asked Madame Chairwoman can I give a handout to the Board members that may not be so clearly visible on the screen?  It’s one page.  It’s your own approving Resolutions.

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded you have something for the staff as well, please.  Tom, while we’re waiting, can you address this issue about the parcels 6 and 9?

Mr. Tom Wood responded if you look at the filed map there are references to three different parcels; you have a clubhouse parcel and the other golf course parcels, so that was the numbers that were placed on the map for those parcels.  It’s all related to the golf.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked but there seemed to be a sense that something could happen as long as it happened with the approval of the Planning Board, could do some building or something could go on here but it could not go on without approval…

Mr. Tom Wood responded everything requires the approval of the Planning Board.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated in other words, the idea that something could – it didn’t say that you can’t build anything.  It said if the club wanted to do something…

Mr. Tom Wood stated the restriction says if there’s any changes to what was approved that it had to come back to the municipality and the note on the map reflects what was in your original Resolution.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated and I think that’s the spirit in which this Board took it, that it wasn’t something that said you could  not do anything at all but that anything that, down the line, needed to be done had to meet with this Board’s approval or else it couldn’t get done.  It wasn’t as though it said you could not do it at all.  I don’t know.  There’s a difference in – I was on the Board at that time, I think Steve was the Chair, I’m sure he was when this went through and I do remember some of the very heated conversations that went on about chemicals and what would happen and how many times it would be tested and the Board did push for three testings.  We maybe would have pushed for even more at one point but because we were assured that these were going to be tested, that the grounds would be tested and they would be done almost religiously that we would have results and that any problems with the water would immediately be discussed with the Town.  I don’t think that we’ve had a problem, at least it hasn’t come to our attention or to my attention that we’ve had any problems with that so I do think that yes, I agree with the previous speaker that we did work really hard to be sure that there wouldn’t be a situation that we would regret.  As I said, our sense, at least in the way that we’ve been discussing it, is that the club could do more with that particular property as far as building something or constructing something but it would have to be monitored very closely, the Board would have to approve it and we would take a good look at it and I think we have.  

Mr. John Klarl stated an approval is part of a Special Permit and that puts extra conditions on it.

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded yes, that’s true.  So, I don’t really want anyone to go away and think that this was just sort of a quickie.  We did really go over the specifics of this current application and I think most of us were satisfied.  John Bernard raised the issue about the pool and the chemicals and clearly I think we are concerned about that.  I wouldn’t want anybody to think that we’re not but I think that based on some of the recommendations, one of them which came from the City of Peekskill that the water be, whenever necessary, maintenance was done or the pool had to be emptied, that all of that water be pumped into a tanker.  I hope, to some extent, it resolves a major issue about what happens with water when it has to come out of that pool.  Given the fact that we could have a natural disaster here and something could happen and the earth would open and the pool would break and all the water would run out, well that could happen but I don’t know.  I think most of us do not, on the Board, hold up projects because we fear that we’re going to have a terrible earthquake.  We just have to look for ways to mitigate as much on any project as we can and hope that it will go forward and people will monitor and be conscious of the kinds of commitments that they’ve made in moving forward with a particular application or project.  I think that the Board had come to the point where we felt relatively strongly that we could approve it but John has raised an issue and I think that, to the extent that we can work with applicant to be sure that we mitigate these concerns about the water I think we could pass on this?  Did you want to say something Andy.

Mr. Andrew Fischer stated a couple of comments.  First of all I have to take issue with how long it’s taking to have a public hearing on this.  I wrote to the Planning Board to speak at the August meeting and was denied.  This is a critical environmental area and so far there has not been an environmental review of this application.  There’s been architectural items discussed, site issues, size issues, shape, color, ADA compatibility but any questions and answers regarding the environment have just been verbal at the microphone between Mr. Sattler and a few Board members and I don’t know that Mr. Satler’s credentials have been documented that make him an expert on the matter.  You asked questions about chlorine and other chemicals reaching the Hollowbrook.  Eight years ago you conducted an extensive environmental review of how chemicals from households, roads, golf courses and all sorts of other surfaces can make its way to the Hollowbrook and you had experts testify on it in writing and gave you evidence that you could review on your own time and ask intelligent questions about it and you did so eight years ago.  Here, it’s been a casual banter back and forth.  That’s it.  I would maintain that a long form EIF is required for this specifically because it’s a critical environmental area and because of this Board’s own findings statement in 2003.  This Board found that this property had unique echo systems of wildlife, water and land use that needed special protections.  And, you put a lot of conditions on the approval.  Many of those conditions have fallen by the wayside over the years but this particular one I have to take a stand on so I gave out a handout which is the same document on the screen.  These are from four different pages from the Planning Board files from Mr. Kehoe’s office.  The first one is a condition from the Planning Board’s own approving Resolution which you debated for months over this at many public hearings and you intelligently came up with this language that said “the parcel being approved for use as a golf club shall contain a deed restrictions providing that said property shall not be used for further building development.”  That’s the end of the sentence.  Right below it is the legal language that actually ended up in it and that added additional language “unless otherwise approved by the municipality, no building development shall take place on parcels 6 and 9 other than hereto for approved by the municipality.”  Now, this Board did not say only on parcels 6 and 9.  This Board did not say make this reversible in the future.  I don’t know how that language got on there and honestly I don’t want to get into a legal debate about how it did.  Further down, number ‘c,’ the third one, this is the Town Board’s approving Resolution, same as you guys “part of a parcel which is being dedicated for use as a golf course shall contain a deed restriction providing that said property shall be maintained for golf course purposes and that no use other than golf club shall be allowed except for passive open space,” similar.  The last one, the fourth one at the bottom letter ‘d,’ this is the language the applicant asked for eight years ago before your approving Resolution.  He wants the language “that parcel shall be approved for use as a golf club and shall contain a deed restriction providing the said property shall not be used for further building development,” that’s the language the applicant asked for.  The only one out of these four that has the loophole that let’s this be reversible in the future and the only one that specifies parcels 6 and 9 instead of the whole property is the deed in convenant restriction.  Nobody came back to the Planning Board and asked for that change.  This was done after you voted.  I have a hard time with, eight years later that you’re relying on that document and that document only instead of your own approving Resolution.  You should follow what this Board asked for.  This Board said “no further building development.”  This Board did not ask for a loophole in the future to reverse itself.  This Board did not say only parcels 6 and 9 and now the legal advice you’re getting is that it’s okay to reverse and that it’s limited to parcels.  I would take serious exception to that because this Board deliberated for four years, had over 18 public hearings and made intelligent choices about the language in there and to see it reversed now, eight years later over legal interpretations is a shame.  It averts the whole process that you’re here for.  You’re here to protect the environment for the benefit of the people who are tax payers in this Town and the region around it and the people who drink the water from the Hollowbrook watershed.  You’re not here to stand up for legal interpretations and making sure someone’s right or wrong about a legal document.  This Board said “no further building development” and that’s what I think you should stick to.  Many of you were on the Board eight years ago and I think you should stick with that document.  Other issues, it was mentioned a short while ago by Mr. Wood that SEQRA CEA is a SEQRA requirement but it’s really more than that.  CEA designation is binding to the property forever until any conditions warrant a Board removing the CEA status.  This Board found it a critical environmental area eight years ago.  This Board found that they should limit impervious surfaces eight years ago.  This Board debated with the applicant and said “no more square feet of impervious surfaces.”  You went back and forth about the number of units, size of building, shape of buildings, location and buildings and said “no more impervious surfaces.”  A lot of the tradeoffs that you made back then with the impervious surfaces now they want to add 3,300 more square feet of impervious surface.  Why would the Board want to flip flop on that?  What’s changed in the last eight years?   What expert testimony have you gotten on this application that would change the view of this Board from eight years ago?  And, pools, aside from natural disasters which I don’t think of that lightly, pools are occasionally drained for routine maintenance repairs.  They’re also drained because of accidents that people in the pool go through.  I took my kids to a water park a few years ago that had well over 400,000 gallons in it.  A kid had an accident in the pool and they had to drain the whole thing and soak it in Clorox for the whole day, people couldn’t use it.  The bigger issue for the Hollowbrook eco- system are continuous chemicals that are used over and over again, chlorine’s just one but you haven’t done anything that would restrict this applicant in writing on what chemicals they would use in the pool, haven’t even asked them to provide you a written list of what chemicals would be used in the pool.  You did ask that of the golf course applicant eight years ago and that was debated, discussed and it was said in writing.  Besides chlorine, the filtration system that uses DE (diatomaceous earth) used DE that comes out of the filter after it’s been dirtied is actually a known carcinogen and there’s been many cases around the world where people have to treat it as a hazardous material, workers who work in it in their routine jobs.  Our own Town Water Works Department, the Northern Westchester Water Works on Route 6 uses DE filters and years ago when residents nearby discovered that the DE was being stored on site, they made a big stink about it.  And, what did the Water Works do?  They didn’t just agree.  They bought up the five houses that abutted the Water Works property so that those residents wouldn’t be exposed to it.
Mr. Bill Sattler asked Andrew if I could stop you there for a second?

Mr. Andrew Fischer responded actually if I can I’d like to finish.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated let him finish his statement.

Mr. Bill Sattler stated I would like to clarify a lot of things.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated you can clarify after he’s finished please.  Thank you.

Mr. Andrew Fischer stated I’ve waited three months to speak.  The pool patrons who are going to use this pool will most likely use suntan lotions frequently and daily.  Suntan lotions contain an ingredient call PABA.  A lot of them will use insect sprays to keep mosquitoes off of them.  Mosquito sprays usually contain DEET.  Both of those chemicals have been proven to attack the nervous system of humans and mammals.  When those are used poolside on the sidewalks and grass around the pool and the rainwater washes that into the Hollowbrook.  How will that affect the wildlife in the Hollowbrook?  How will this applicant keep wildlife out of the pool itself including the turtles that this Board bent over backwards eight years ago to protect and create a conserved area for the conservation of wood turtles?  What is going to keep turtles, frogs, birds, all sorts of other critters that you sought to protect eight years ago, what will keep them out of the pool?  Because once they enter the chlorinated pool they usually die because they can’t get out and they’re trapped by the chemical.  The patrons who use the pool especially use the snack bar and the pool are going to have litter all the time; wrappers from the products they bought at the snack bar, paper plates, plastic knives, etc, tissues.  Winds going to blow it around, that litter’s going to make its way into the Hollowbrook.  You can’t stop the wind.  Golfers don’t generally litter.  They don’t eat on the golf course while they’re playing golf but now you’re introducing hundreds of people a day who are going to litter on that property.  How are you going to keep that from harming the very animals that you sought to protect eight years ago?  Several people here have talked about, in fact Ms. Chairman what you’ve just said, you don’t think there’s been any environmental hits on the property, that’s actually not the case.  When this golf course management came back here in 2008 to reduce the number of water quality tests they had, the testimony that came from our hired engineers said there’s been two hits, there were two incidents in 2006 and 2007 and they had to take corrective measures to fix that.  The City of Peekskill never learned about it until this applicant came back here in 2008.  When they looked at the documentation they objected vehemently with this Board about reducing the water quality tests yet it was reduced anyway for the economic benefit of this golf club.  This golf club was supposed to build a cart path between the housing and the golf club because this Board found in its findings statement that that would reduce the number of car trips back and forth on Oregon Road but two years after this club opened for business and they still hadn’t built it, they came back to this Board and asked for relief from that condition and said “please let us out of this condition.”  Then they came back to you about the pavilion that was supposed to be an open air pavilion.  This Board found that that was not considered further building construction based on the same deed restrictions.  This Board has bent over backwards for the economic development of this golf club and now they’re back here again to add another activity for their revenue.  I have nothing against the business being successful in Town.  I was a big supporter of this golf club after four years of debate in front of this Planning Board but you have to abide by your own restrictions that you set and not flip flop on it to make this quick approval process.  If you’ve declared something a critical environmental area you should be asking for expert testimony.  If you need a legal opinion about something you might want to ask other independent attorneys who’ve had nothing to do with the process to look at the documents if you want to answer a legal question but I don’t want to make that a legal debate.  This Board’s intent eight years ago was “no further building development on the property” period, end of story, three different Resolutions and the note on the plat that say so.  The only document that doesn’t say so, the only document with the loophole is that deed in convenant which I guess was written by the applicant but agreed to by Town staff.  I would also ask that you keep the public hearing open so that there can be a discussion, a debate about these documents going forward and not rush to close it because if the document that Mr. Wood wrote had been available in July to comment on you would have other legal testimony about whether you can or can’t approve further development building on it and to only have that available the night that you have a Resolution in front of you gives the public no time to really question it.  Thank you for listening.
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked did you want to respond to some of these things that Mr. Fisher raised?

Mr. Bill Sattler responded yes I did.  Many of Andrew’s questions were quite valid and noted but there were some erroneous information that he had, one of them being about the filtration of the pool.  The pool is being filtrated by cartridge filters.  They are not backwashed, there’s no environmental impact on them however, they are poly-resin filter, when they are dirty they are replaced with something clean and then those dirty filters are cleaned off site, not on site.  It’s a shock creek pool.  A shock creek pool is – the intent is to keep it filled up all winter long so that the forces of frost prevent the cave in of the wall of the pool that the two forces kind of cancel each other out.  As far as keeping wildlife out, Westchester County Department of Health insist that there is no opening greater than two inches under the fence for something to get in.  A frog, perhaps, salamander for sure, a turtle I just don’t see a turtle getting under a two-inch fence.  As far again as drainage, there is no drainage.  The intent is to fill the pool unless there’s a catastrophic failure in the construction of the pool it stays full and the water is continuously filtered and recycled and only added to make up water loss due to evaporation.  As far as the quality hits that he was talking about I do not know exactly the times and dates that it happened but my education would guess that that probably coincides with some kind of natural disaster which we’ve been experiencing the past two weeks such as hurricane Irene.  There’s forces beyond acts of God that we can’t control, they just happen, that’s just part of life that we have to deal with but as a general whole I think the Hollowbrook Golf Club has tried very hard to maintain the quality of water and their impact on the Hollowbrook including fertilization of the golf course which to me would be a greater danger than the swimming pool itself.
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked are you finished with your remarks?

Mr. Bill Sattler responded as far as some of his concerns yes.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we have somebody else who’s been waiting to speak.

Mr. Andrew Fischer stated I just want to correct a few things that Mr. Satler said as far as wildlife getting in there.  Turtles don’t just crawl on the grass, they dig and they dig voraciously.  I know this because I’ve raised turtles and have them as pets at home.  They can dig three feet almost faster than a human can do a shovel including wood turtles, especially.  And birds fly over four foot chain link fence very easily.  That was all.

Ms. Mary Foster stated Mayor of the City of Peekskill and as all of you probably would know it would be extremely rare for another elected official to show up at a Planning Board meeting.  The reason that I’m doing so is as the previous speaker pointed out, we had veraciously argued against reducing the water quality testing on the Hollowbrook, despite that, it was still reduced.  We were notified, at least I was notified, and Councilwoman Claxton was notified about this action last week and so we immediately followed up with our Director of Planning to understand what was going on, what was the process, what was trying to be built and why.  There wasn’t a lot of advance notice and so for communities who supposedly work together and are jointly together concerned about the environmental quality of our neighborhoods and want to comment on each other’s abilities to support economic development in environmentally sensitive areas in environmentally sensitive ways, when we were dealing with our own site in trying to have a property developer excavate urban soil, not highly contaminated soil, urban soil.  It has pipes and bricks and stuff in it and dump it in a landfill it “raised quite a firestorm” within the Supervisor’s office and eventually, even though it was in a landfill and it still was going to be capped, the kibosh was put on that.  The concern was that anything in that landfill will run into water, and everybody is very much concerned about the quality of their water regardless of where it starts and where it ends, it takes a journey.  For us the Hollowbrook is our drinking water.  For that water of body that the concern was it was neighborhood water.  It’s the water at the Annsville Creek.  So, if we’re going to have common concerns for each other’s conservation and environmental issues one would think that there’d be a more open dialogue, that we would have more than a week’s notice, that we would have actually understood more thoroughly what was being done here especially considering, and don’t get argumentative with me Mr. Wood because…

Mr. Tom Wood stated I don’t intend to but may I point out that we sent notice to the City on August 5th 2011.  It went to your Water Superintendent and your Planning Director.   As required by law the notice was given to the City a month ago.  Whatever your internal issues are…
Ms. Mary Foster responded no that’s not an internal issue and what I’m hearing here Mr. Wood is that this process and discussion did not start 30 days ago.  From what I’m hearing is that there’s been a dialogue and a discussion going on for several months and you’ve actually have had some speakers say that they waited at least three months for public hearing to be had. 
Mr. Tom Wood stated and a public hearing is what you got notice of. 

Ms. Mary Foster responded absolutely.  We got notice of a public hearing and we are at it but we got a notice of a public hearing and our staff did run around and get a lot of documentation that they could on that.  But, my point is, you and I would agree, and I think you and I would agree that that’s not quite the spirit of cooperation between municipalities if you’re trying to jointly protect each other’s conservation areas and environmental issues and in the same time not interfere with each other’s economic development objectives.  I don’t want to interfere with somebody’s economic development objectives.  The reason I’m here is the last time we objected to a reduction in the testing of the water quality you all ignored it and allowed it to be reduced from three to two.  I’m concerned because, yes, my Director of Planning has sent a letter and has sent some requests for things that they believe are critical to monitor that there’s no impact on the quality of water.  I would suggest that the Planning Board and the Town’s Attorneys take that letter very seriously and that it not only be responded to but the specific plans be shared.  We don’t like to get into each other’s turf and argue about these things but we’re all very concerned about our environment and environmentally sensitive areas.  We have an open water source and for us protecting it is extremely important.  You have open water sources and to all of us this is important.  What I’m asking for is really a fair sharing of information and a serious consideration that the issues that get raised by the City of Peekskill actually get factored into the equation and not taken as “okay well it’s a thought but we don’t really need to do it,” because there was serious thought given initially to what the amount of testing would be.  I understand additional testing is additional costs but I don’t think you compromise the cost involved for the developers that are going to impact critically sensitive areas for you.  I don’t expect anybody to reduce the cost for developer on areas that are going to be environmentally critical for the City of Peekskill.  So, what I’m asking for is fair treatment.  The same way you would treat projects that you think affect your water and your environmentally sensitive areas that things that are going to affect our environmentally sensitive areas are given the same consideration and the same serious thought when we raise things.  And, I do not believe our Director of Planning said in his letter “I object.  Don’t do it.”  I believe he raised reasonable prudent steps to be taken and we expect those to be seriously considered.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked can I ask you a question?  If this were to go to approval, would you be satisfied if one of the conditions were to go back to three testings per year?

Ms. Mary Foster responded I would insist on it but I would want to see what other things you would be doing to protect the environment and we have very little of that information as the previous speaker said.  This is not my area of expertise but I know our Director of Planning wasn’t provided with all that information up front, had to start to ask for information and if we’re really going to do the fair sharing we need to know.  He had to dig to find out how was the pool designed?  Is there a backwash?  How is it going to be maintained?  Are there chemicals involved?  What is going to happen?  It shouldn’t be the death of a thousand questions but yes, going back to three is, in my view, essential.  The more you add here – there’s nothing that says when you want to take 25% of a golf course and develop it that next don’t come play tennis court.  I guess one could say a hotel is consistent of the needs of a golf club.  You may have Town residents who might want a place for somebody to stay, so yes, the more you do the more you need to test and assure that the environment is not being compromised regardless of what you’re doing with impervious surfaces.  I’m sure I don’t need to mention hurricane Irene and the fact that at the mouth of the Hollowbrook and Annsville Creek you had record flooding.  The more impervious surface you create, and I don’t think any of us can control mother nature, the more likelihood would we have of that same kind of flooding at the mouths of these two brooks.  All of that is environmentally important and I’m assuming those were all the environmental issues that you’re taking into consideration, though I don’t see the documentation on it but perhaps our Planning Director has.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated the issues raised by your Planning Director are included in the Resolution except for the changing of the…

Ms. Mary Foster responded I don’t have the Resolution.  I received a notice.  I received a copy of his letter but we don’t have any of – I don’t have that.

Mr. John Klarl stated the letter was dated yesterday.

Ms. Foster asked has a long form been done?  The question was “has a long form environmental assessment been done?”  And I think it was answered as no.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I’ll address that.  I discussed this specifically, that point, with the County’s Director of Planning Ed Buroughs, and it is not mandated that you do a long form.  They can raise the issue and you can decide to direct the applicant to do a long form but I don’t want it hanging around out there that a long form is mandated.  According to the County Planning Commissioner is not mandated.

Mr. John Bernard asked even in a Critical Environmental Area?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded even in a Critical Environmental Area and another issue, just a semantic issue…

Ms. Mary Foster stated and I guess just to get to that point and that gets to the issue of, I believe, and to the issue in front of this Board is how seriously do you take the protection of the environment whether you mandate a long form or not.  I know Supervisor Puglisi takes the protection of the environment very, very, very seriously…

Mr. Tom Wood stated because if you recall when the contaminated material was going to put in the ash pit…

Ms. Mary Foster stated urban soil not contaminated material.

Mr. Tom Wood stated there was no notice to the Town by the City.  We accidentally learned of it and then we had to have a meeting to discuss it but I’ll leave those issues to the Town Board.
Ms. Mary Foster responded but we discussed it didn’t we?

Mr. Tom Wood responded only that Supervisor asked and set up a meeting with County Officials.

Ms. Mary Foster stated and it wasn’t an approval.  We weren’t even at the approval stage but anyway.

Mr. Tom Wood stated Mayor, legally, the City was given the notice.  Any request of information is provided to your Planning Director just like when we asked the City of Peekskill we got the 30 day notice as required by your statute and we have to ask for any additional information if we wish it.  So, I think your innuendo or inference that any attempt has been made to not provide any information to the City is somewhat erroneous and additionally I would add that it is the Planning Board who has conducted meetings and discussions before they determine this application ready for a public hearing tonight.  Obviously it is this Planning Board that will decide are further public hearings needed?  Do changes have to be made to a draft Resolution that they may or may not have?  I don’t know.  I wasn’t preparing it.  I just want, for the record and for everyone to understand that the Town of Cortlandt has provided all of the information requested, will continue to do so and our records are open as Mr. Fischer’s had access to the records and anyone else who wants them.
Ms. Mary Foster stated and I will point out that the soil didn’t get delivered and meanwhile the amount of testing in the Hollowbrook has diminished and so, yes, we are very serious about going back to the at least three times a year testing.  You have a lot of different weather-related events, whether it is extreme snow melt, and snow run off, whether it’s hurricanes at the worst time of the year so suntan lotions, pesticides and everything else ends up in the water.  None of us control mother nature as we well know and I don’t know whether we should suppose that be less mother nature events or more mother nature events in the future but I think that’s part of the issues that are in front of this Board in terms of really considering how you balance and whether a long form is required.  It may not be mandated but whether it’s prudent since there is a very strong feeling, I know on the part of the Supervisor, about protecting the environment and conservation.  Whether that is a rational step or whether when you do this and don’t require one when is the next thing that happens on the golf course where you do require one or does it set a precedent one isn’t needed.  I guess we won’t need it for the next one and so you can do incremental projects and if you’d looked at them all upfront we all know the process, you would have said “gee, maybe we should have done one when the first cut came.”  That’s all I have.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated just one other comment.  I think it was stated that the Planning Board declared the Peekskill Hollowbrook a Critical Environmental Area.

Ms. Mary Foster responded I didn’t say that.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated Andrew did.  The Planning Board did not declare it a critical environmental area.  Just to make sure that the record is clear.

Ms. Drew Claxton stated the State of New York has declared the Peekskill Hollowbrook a critical environmental area.  I believe the State of New York trumps the Cortlandt Planning Board.  I believe that that is true.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I was correcting the record.

Ms. Drew Claxton stated I do want to agree with the Mayor that while – and I’m not even sure that that is correct that a long form isn’t done regardless of what the County Planning official has said, what we are asking you is that you treat our watershed with the seriousness that it deserves.  That you really take a look – I mean you have an environmental, a short form for an unlisted action which basically means there is no environmental effect, how would you know that?
Mr. Chris Kehoe responded that’s not factually correct.  The short form gives basic information.  Through this process, the Planning Board is conducting an environmental review.  At the end of the process if they choose to approve it they will complete SEQRA.  There’s this idea that without a long form an environmental review is not being conducted.  An environmental review is being conducted.

Ms. Drew Claxton stated our Planning Director has requested to receive copies of environmental and engineering reports.  Are there such reports, environmental and engineering reports?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded I don’t know what that means.

Ms. Drew Claxton asked you don’t know what an environmental report is or an engineering report?

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked give me an example of what would the Planning Director like, what type of environmental report?
Ms. Drew Claxton asked did you not do environmental reports when this environmental assessments and environmental and get professional environmental people to come in here…

Mr. Tom Wood stated just to clarify the process is that if the Planning Board decided that they’re unable to make a decision on the SEQRA aspect of it they can require additional reports.  I think the first question is that the Planning Board may consider this to be a minor addition and that the original environmental study that did go into extensively into the water testing etc, was sufficient and that this – and I don’t mean to characterize it, that will be a decision of the Board, they may feel that this is a minor addition of a 1,500 square foot addition to a building and a 40,000 or a 60,000 gallon swimming pool.  They may do that.  You may disagree with that or they may say “well, gee we still have issues and we think this has to be addressed, that has to be addressed” and then a report would be generated.  I think Mr. Kehoe’s point is, is that if this were the original application for the golf course obviously there was a wetlands consultant everything else and those reports would be – so I think since this is not the original application this is a request to add on to an existing facility…

Ms. Drew Claxton stated it is an expansion of a commercial use.

Mr. Tom Wood continued so therefore the Planning Board has to make that decision if the record is complete enough for them to make that decision.

Mr. John Klarl stated and Tom, as you know, often in these situations and Chris has seen it and Ed has seen it where we have an existing development we add something to it, we do a supplemental report.  We identify what possible impact might be, it might be a traffic impact, it might be a drainage impact, and just focus on a supplemental report as to the enlargement or to the addition.

Ms. Drew Claxton asked so are there environmental or engineering reports that address that; the additional impact to the watershed?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded at this point no.

Ms. Drew Claxton asked at this point, do we have any information on any mitigation efforts if there were to be an impact to our watershed?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded as the Chairperson has mentioned, there was a draft Resolution prepared and the request of the City of Peekskill with respect to backflow preventer, with respect to pumping water out of the pool, with respect to listing of the chemicals, with respect to storing of the chemicals, those items would all be up to the Planning Board if they wanted to include those in any approving Resolution, they have been added to the Resolution.

Ms. Drew Claxton stated I would really encourage the Planning Commission here and the Planning Board to entertain strongly conducting a long form, an environmental assessment.  Thank you.

Ms. Mary Foster stated I just want to make sure that it’s clear because Anthony’s letter, our Director of Planning included – and when I came in at the work session agenda for last week’s meeting was on the table, not the draft Resolution, so I don’t have the draft Resolution and I was told that the draft Resolution was in fact not out on the table.  But, what’s requested in the letter is a lot more information and so I’ll read it and just in case for some reason there’s a misunderstanding.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated one other thing.  The Planning Board received that letter this evening at 6:00 p.m.

Ms. Mary Foster stated I understand that and I assumed that they just got it and I was surprised when someone said there was language in the draft Resolution because I just received it and we were going to bring copies but you led me to believe that they had it by saying language from here was in the draft Resolution which I haven’t seen.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated because I’ve been talking with your Planning Department and I also believe members of the Planning Department did a site inspection.

Ms. Mary Foster stated I know they came up there.  It doesn’t mean they don’t have concerns.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I’m just saying that some of those concerns made it into a Resolution because I have been talking with Jeremy for the past four or five days.

Ms. Mary Foster stated as I said, they let us know last week, regardless of when notice went out in terms of when they could have the information, but here’s the information we’re looking for just so you’re all aware.  “The City requested, should the project be approved, the condition be added that occasional discharges of pool water for maintenance repairs or winterization go into the Town Sanitary Sewer System for treatment or pumped into a tanker truck for safe disposal off site.”  Presumably that’s what you mean about some of the language in the draft Resolution.  “The City objects to any discharge of pool water into the Town’s storm water system or onto nearby lawn area.”  Presumably, you’re telling me that that’s in the draft Resolution.  “The City requests that should the project should be approved all necessary engineering controls be in place including, but not limited, to backflow preventer for the water main,” I’m assuming that’s in the draft Resolution, “necessary storm water controls be installed to handle run off from impervious surfaces in and around the pools.”  Is that in the Resolution?  Is it specific, general?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded the next one, specifically has to do with a heading of the filters…

Ms. Mary Foster stated that’s separate, those are three separate bullets.  Not seeing the draft Resolution, we typically get very directive.  I’m not sure of your protocol.  “Roof leaders and footing drains be installed in accordance with best practices.”  I’m assuming that that’s probably in the draft Resolution.  That you also “continue to go on the record to request that the Town reconsider its 2009 decision to reduce quality water monitoring from three times a year to two times a year.”  “Our understanding is that the Cortlandt Planning Board’s 2003 approval of this golf course project was subject to an environmental findings statement and subject to several conditions of approval that placed restrictions on where and what kind of additional development can occur on this site.  Our main concern is that the watershed not be degraded by new development and that it be subjected to thorough environmental and engineering reviews.”  Those are the reviews and the reports that Councilwoman Claxton is asking for.  “Accordingly, we request that we receive copies of any environmental or engineering reports or correspondence of other involved agencies so that we can keep abreast of this project and any or all mitigation efforts.”  I don’t think that it was the understanding of our Planning staff that in under 30 days that the project was being approved.  I think they’re believing that this might be the beginning of a process not the end of the process.  I am seriously asking that this all be considered and that the environmental and engineering reports be provided to the Planning Boards so that they are able to assess whether or not the public hearing stays open and the long form is continued or not.  We take this really seriously and we don’t really like to come and necessarily in person and stick our nose in somebody else’s business.
Mr. Andrew Fischer stated Madame Chairwoman several people have said how a long form EAF is not mandated.  Just because it’s not mandated doesn’t mean you shouldn’t want it.  This Board asked for lots of expert testimony eight years ago and reports and studies that weren’t mandated but it helped you make an informed decision and it was input from the public back with you and back again, that interaction is what lead you to a lot of intelligent decisions back then.  But, to not even ask the applicant to fill out the long form EIF, which will bring to your attention some of the environmental impacts, is why I would maintain there hasn’t been an environmental review up until today.  I spoke with this informally with Chris recently and his response was “there has been an environmental review.  It was forwarded to the Architectural Review Committee and the Fire Department” and you all had a site visit.  Well, the Architectural Review Committee doesn’t do environmental reviews, neither does the Fire Department.  They’re looking at site access and your questions you’ve asked have only been answered so far, by Mr. Satler who’s credentials haven’t been put before you, haven’t been put before anyone in the public to see what expertise he really has in the matter.  As to engineering reports that Councilwoman Claxton alluded to, those are engineering reports like the many you reviewed eight years ago.  Flow charts that indicated how many pounds of fertilizer would go on the golf course per square foot and how many hours, days, or weeks it would take to travel down the 50 feet to the Hollowbrook with flow charts and steep slopes maps embedded on them.  Nothing’s been produced or required of the applicant to this as to chemicals, and showing with science, how it might make its way to the Hollowbrook or be prevented from that only a few informal comments at the microphone by a non-expert.  As to Mr. Wood, your memo regarding the restricted deed in covenance, you said that it is up to the municipality to decide to reverse this.  I’d like to know, is the definition municipality mean the Town Board or the Planning Board in that statement?

Mr. Tom Wood responded if you’re going to change a restriction then it would run in favor of the Town, the Town Board may have to be involved but this is not changing a restriction and the restriction clearly allows a golf club.  To give you an example, like at Valeria there was a conservation easement and it was approved and it’s held by the Westchester Land Trust.  They had to make a change.  The owner of the property had to make a change in the easement area, came back to the Planning Board, the Planning Board consented, the Westchester Land Trust consented.  An amendment to the easement was recorded.  So, in this case, there is no change of the declaration or restriction on either the map or the declaration.  I respectfully disagree with your legal opinion and the Planning Board is the agency that decides about the additional construction.

Mr. Andrew Fischer stated but from your language and your deed of convenance it says, this is the language, I’m reading word for word, the second item up there: “unless and until otherwise approved by the municipality, no building development shall take place.” 

Mr. Tom Wood stated and it specifically references the map that had been approved and delivered and if you look at the map number 2 under ‘special notes’ as the exact language that’s in the Planning Board approval Resolution, the exact language.

Mr. Andrew Fischer stated so it says “unless and until otherwise approved by the municipality, no further building.”

Mr. Tom Wood stated right.

Mr. Andrew Fischer continued so “no further building development shall take place unless the municipality changes.”
Mr. Tom Wood stated I think you were late at the meeting when I explained that the building that you keep referencing is under 270a of the Town Law which has to do with the number of units that are allowed to be built under Zoning.

Mr. Andrew Fischer stated that doesn’t say that here.

Mr. Tom Wood stated well, if you want to have another legal opinion, please have it but the law is that the legal buildable units have now been clustered together so the site is devoid of any additional residential units and it’s been further restricted to say the only use that this one parcel can be put to is for a golf course and a golf club and so if this Board feels that the proposed amendment to this property keeps within that restriction, it’s not an issue.  If this Board decided that the addition of 1,500 square foot building and a 60,000 gallon pool is not part of a golf club and there was an issue then that might require an amendment to the restriction if they wanted to go forward.

Mr. Andrew Fischer asked does that consist of a change?  My understanding was change of use always comes before the Zoning Board of Appeals and not the Planning Board.  Does that mean change of use if they found that this is not the definition of a golf club?
Mr. Tom Wood responded change of use, that goes to the Zoning Board as if the Town Board zoned the property residential and someone can’t sell the house on the property and there’s no other possible use that’s allowed, they have to go to the Zoning Board and prove that economically their property is void of any value except for whatever use they want to put it to and the Zoning Board can give them a use Variance.  That’s a totally different process.

Mr. John Klarl stated pretty tough to achieve.

Mr. Andrew Fischer stated I thought this property as zoned as golf club and passive recreation space.

Mr. Tom Wood responded if you look under the Special Permit of the Zoning Ordinance for this, it’s a membership club which allows for the golf course and club as a membership club not to the public membership club.

Mr. Andrew Fischer stated but I believe it also has the words passive open space or passive recreation space.

Mr. Tom Wood responded it’s no other use other than a golf course, golf club or passive open space.  They’re the only permitted uses of this lot.

Mr. Andrew Fischer stated so I would think that this Board has to take that language into consideration when you think about the addition of a swimming pool, a bridal suite and a snack bar…

Mr. Tom Wood responded no, passive use means if the golf club tomorrow locked the doors and left and they wanted to use it as a horse riding academy, they couldn’t use it as a horse riding academy.  It would have to remain passive use.

Mr. Andrew Fischer stated okay, I’m not an attorney but I think the definition of passive use has to do with environmental impacts and that these are – like a soccer field is a passive use but a parking lot is not.

Mr. Tom Wood responded well, if you mix the definitions from SEQRA to Zoning to a restriction it will become a mish mash and nothing will make sense yet each section of the law, each rule has different definitions and views as to what things are.  I would also point out to you that since this matter was approved in the case of O’Mara vs. the Town of Wappingers which was decided by the New York State Court of Appeals and the United States District Circuit Court of Appeals, regardless of whether this declaration was filed or not, the map note number 2 which is the exact language that the Planning Board had in their Resolution, is what would govern and prevail.  So, even if you have an issue with the language in this declaration, the O’Mara case which was decided many years after – I think it was ’06 or ’07 clearly affirmed the New York State that a note on the map is the controlling restriction with respect to any property that’s shown on that map.  I keep reiterating this special note number 2 is the exact language…
Mr. John Bernard stated and yet for some reason when we had the Wikert application for a flag lot house to be added to a property which was restricted by a note on the drawing that was filed, that did not hold water.  At that time we were told that that restriction didn’t hold because we could find no person who was there at that time for that vote who would attest to having put that note on there even though it was clearly on there from the planning process.

Mr. Tom Wood responded I’m not familiar with that case.

Mr. John Bernard stated well it’s unfortunate because the opinion…

Mr. Tom Wood asked what year was that Mr. Bernard?

Mr. John Bernard responded we did Wikert three years ago?

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I don’t remember that name.  

Mr. John Bernard stated it was off of Lafayette, right around 264 Lafayette.  The Wikert’s had a house.  They had a back lot that was sizable but it required a long driveway.  It’s a flag lot.

Mr. Tom Wood asked was it a note on the map or was it a reference to the deed restriction…
Mr. John Klarl asked it wasn’t with Mr. Sullivan was it?  Mr. John Sullivan?

Mr. John Bernard responded I don’t know Sullivan.

Mr. Tom Wood stated sometimes, and I’ll certainly look at it, but sometimes what happens is when a map is prepared they will reference restrictions that are in the deed and a deed is a document between a grantor and a grantee and those restrictions run with the land but is subject to modifications by those parties which is different than the note on the map that’s placed there prior to the signing by the Planning Board.  I don’t want to misspeak because I’m not personally familiar with that file. 

Mr. John Bernard stated the only thing I remember is that it was the official document that we have in the file as the approving document that created those lots to start with and the understanding from the local community there, there was a development built behind this area, the understanding at the time that those people built their houses was that this particular lot was restricted and that it was formally restricted by this note on the drawing and yet when it came before us we were told that that was null and void because there was no file, there was no proof that it was really put on there purposely.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated Wickel was the person’s name.

Mr. John Klarl stated and Mr. Sullivan was involved with that.

Mr. John Bernard stated so I’m just confused as to notes.  I always think that notes are notes.  You know, you put them on there for a reason.

Mr. Tom Wood stated well it wasn’t until 2007 at the New York State Court of Appeals decided what a note is.  It’s been an open question for many years.

Mr. John Bernard asked but now it’s decided?

Mr. Tom Wood responded yes, the [inaudible] provides you with the case of O’Mara vs. the Town of Wappingers.
Mr. John Klarl stated as a matter of fact the US Court of Appeals in the second circuit was scratching their head and they sent them to New York State.  The Federal Court didn’t know what to do with it.  Now New York State has spoken.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated guys I think we’re moving far field here and we need to come back to the discussion at hand.

Mr. Andrew Fisher stated one more question regarding Mr. Wood’s memo about the email exchange that took place June 17th.  Mr. Kehoe asked Mr. Wood for an opinion about the restriction and Mr. Wood’s opinion, a quick opinion came back in an informal email.  I requested that twice under foil and…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated you never submitted a foil application.  You mentioned it and I said it was an email from the Town Attorney.  I didn’t know if I could give an email.  There was no foil request.

Mr. Andrew Fischer responded yes, because the first batch of documents that came in I asked why that wasn’t in the folder and you said it’s in an email it’s not something that’s foilable yet.  In the August meeting you read from it to the Planning Board and they asked to get a copy and you said I can’t give you a copy it’s an email.  August 25th it became available, 65 days later.

Mr. Tom Wood stated all formal requests would have to be filed with the Town Clerk.  There’s a document that’s filled out with the Town Clerk.  I think a lot of times you’re accommodated at the Planning office with your request for documents without going through the formal process.  I think Mr. Kehoe was erring on the side of caution because obviously a communication between an Attorney and its Board could be confidential.  You have a copy of it because once I knew there was such an interest in my email I have no problem with you having it, everybody has it.

Mr. Andrew Fischer stated August 25th it became available to me and it’s been forwarded to attorneys for review as well as this memo but they haven’t had time because of several people being on vacation this time of year, this being the one and only public hearing, haven’t had time to form comments that this Board would be interested to see and the Board asked again at the August meeting for that email and Chris said “I can’t print it for you but I’ll read it to you.”  I have a problem with how long it takes for information that the public can read, act on, and make comments on back to you.  It hasn’t been enough of a time frame to get other people’s legal opinions back to you on it.  I would ask that you continue to allow other people to give you back comments beyond tonight on it.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is there anybody else who has a comment to make?

Mr. Bill Sattler responded I just want to clarify a few questions that keep coming up.  One of them was water quality and water monitoring of the pool.  Now, Westchester County Department of Health mandates three to four times daily that the pool water quality is tested for pH and chlorine residual and that has to be put in a log and sent to the County.  In essence, this water is nearly potable water.  The only impact that might have to fish or other wildlife in the Hollowbrook would be its temperature but certainly not the chemicals compose inside of it.  Another one would be the length of the proximity of the Hollowbrook golf course from the pool and it’s about 60 times the length of the pool away from the Hollowbrook.  Like I said, it would take several thousand pools to flood that basin and that’s at its closest point not at its farthest point.  We’ve responded pretty much to every concern that the Board has asked of us, including handicapped access.  We’ve been very forthcoming and open and honest and accommodating and certainly a pool water quality should not be a deterrent in this case.  As far as discharging, I keep hearing this word diatomaceous earth filtering and that was never proposed.  Our pool plans are submitted to the Westchester County Department of Health and those plans show poly-resin cartridge filters that do not get any backwashing whatsoever.  The filters are dirty, they’re placed in a bag, they’re taken off site, they’re acid-cleaned and then they’re brought back to the facility.  There is no discharge of pool water whatsoever other than evaporation or whatever comes off a person’s body as they’re leaving the water.  As far as a long form goes, I have no objection of filling out a long form.  I think we’ve pretty much answered every question that is asked on a long form so that has been addressed repeatedly, repeatedly but if the Board feels more comfortable with it in writing, I’ll do so.  And, then my qualifications have come up several times.  Over five years ago, five years ago April I passed my EIT test which is the FE exam.  Now, this October I can take the PE exam but I’m not ready but I will take the PE exam.  My internship will be over in April and God willing I will pass which will make me a PE.  Now, Ed could probably explain.  It’s a lengthy process and even once I get my PE license I still cannot stamp my own plans for several years but I have met and exceeded every qualification to be a PE other than I have not passed the physical exam but I did pass the first part.  We’re just waiting for calendar time to go through.  I think that’s pretty much all the questions that the general public had asked us.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated at this point I think there had been some concerns that have been put out at that podium that we would probably want to take a closer look at.  I don’t think that there’ll be any adjournment of the hearing or closing of the hearing, not adjournment but no closing of the hearing at this point.  I’m very happy that you are willing to fill out that long form because it’s sort of would allay some level of concern about what it is we might find here potentially.  Despite the arguments that have been made, I don’t know that the Board will decide to completely back away from the approval.  I think we were all regarding, I think this also came up as part of somebody else’s statement, at what point do you say we’re going to do a full blown start at the beginning study.  I think that these kinds of things are always the judgment of any Planning Board.  We did an all out thing when the golf course was proposed.  We went and we studied and we had experts of all kinds coming in here.  We had citizens and Citizen’s Groups and I think that the effort was there, that we were serious about this.  We were going to be taking a close look at what was going on on the golf course.  You were restricted from doing certain kinds of things.  You were restricted to certain specific pieces or parcels.  The development was scaled down and they were pushed back so that there was a sense that we were very interested in maintaining the quality of the water that goes into the Hollowbrook.  I think when this particular plan came before us, we’re looking at it, somebody phrased it I can’t remember who, a “minor” addition to something that already exists.  I did go out there and looked at it.  The scale of the project is relatively small.  I don’t believe it’s as large as this one, well maybe not quite and there’s also the two-story effect.  It’s not spread out over a large piece of property so that the tight containment of the area – you remember, you weren’t there but I made a comment about how relatively tight everything was.  It is not spread out and I think for that reason when one goes and you take a look at this you begin to see “well, this is a relatively small thing” not that it’s inconsequential but it is not of the magnitude that the original proposal for the Hollowbrook Golf Course and Club was and we have, as a body, to make some determination about how much we need to probe this.  We do need to monitor it.  We do need to put some restrictions, and we have, on some things that you can do and can’t do there but I don’t know that this, in at least our judgment, require the all encompassing, fired-up, give me 25 experts to make sure that this pool is not going to cause a big problem for you.
Mr. Bill Sattler stated your points are respectfully acknowledged and taken but I do want to – the bullet point I’d like you to go home with tonight is that every concern that this Board has presented to us we’ve met and complied with because we’re not out to be environmentally unfriendly, quite the opposite, we want to be environmentally friendly hence the poly-resin cartridge filters for the pool and things of that nature.  No glass in the swimming area.  Things like that, minimal disturbance to the topography of the area and the golf course itself and even the quality of the fencing that it’s solid not just chain link fencing which is what the law mandates but we want to keep the noise to the golfers at a minimum because we don’t want to chase the golfers away and become known as the Hollowbrook Swim Club.  We want it to be the Hollowbrook Golf Club that has swimming amenities as an attraction to it.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I’m sorry, Ed wanted to say something.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated we work with a number of very highly qualified environmental firms.  We could provide them with a list, an environmental list issues that we’ve heard tonight and have them opine on those issues.  Of course that would have to be funded by the applicant.  Would that be okay?

Mr. Bill Sattler responded yes, I mean we’re here to comply with everything.  When, God willing, we get our approval we want everyone to sleep well at night, not just today but years from now as well saying “we did the right thing to the Hollowbrook Country Club, Golf Club and the community.”  Everyone should feel that they were treated fairly.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated what makes sense is to use the same environmental consultant that’s monitoring the two tests per year at the golf course.

Mr. Bill Sattler responded if they want three, that’s okay.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but I think what we’re talking about is some of the issues that have been raised about the distance of the pool to the Hollowbrook, how much water, how long it would take the water to get there, we do have a firm Legette Brashear’s and Graham (LBG) that does the reviews, all the testing that’s out there and they might be the type of firm that could review everything that’s been said and generate a report that could give everyone some comfort.

Mr. Bill Sattler responded my numbers did not come from scaling it from our site map.  They were actual numbers measured on the field.  I believe that they were accurate within a foot or two.  When I gave my calculations I took the most conservative number that would hurt us but would favor those in protection of the Hollowbrook Creek so I took the shortest distances, not the longest distances, the shallowest height not the tallest height and came up with a number that I know is very conservative.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I guess they’re trying to get this all resolved.  Can you then put in writing your calculations, empirically how you…

Mr. Bill Sattler responded I’d be happy to.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated and then we could share that also with the consultant so that they could review his calculations to see if they agree or come up with different ones, or whatever.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated and I think clearly too you can provide a list of, because I do think one of these things is very important, that you provide a list of the kinds of chemicals that will be going into the pool and that will be used to clean the filters and things.  We want to just give them as complete a list of things as possible so that when we show up and people get the responses it’s not “well let’s add another thing and let’s add another thing.”

Mr. Bill Sattler stated but Madame Chair the chemicals that are going into the pool are similar to the chemicals that are going into your municipal drinking water such as: calcium hyperchloride which acts as a bleaching agent to kill bacteria.  

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated but what I’m saying is I’m not a person who knows much about chemicals.  I hardly take aspirin so I don’t know.  What I’m saying is let’s give them a list of things that – and if you’re not the one who’s going to say what’s going into that pool, find somebody who’ll be monitoring that pool and find out what’s going in there and the levels of it and how often it’s going to happen and what the potential problems could be because there’s always a potential problem with anything.
Mr. Bill Sattler responded not only am I happy to give you that information, it’s already been submitted to the Westchester County Department of Health and they do monitor this as does the DEP and other agencies.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked have they approved the chemicals that you’re using?

Mr. Bill Sattler responded they mandate it.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated they mandate it so can you give us – then just give us the documentation that says these are the chemicals that the Department of Health or give us a piece of paper that says this is what they require us to use and this is what we will be using.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated and we want to know how often, how frequently it’s done because obviously it’ll be a question, how much are you putting in and how long are you doing it.

Mr. Bill Sattler responded hopefully, we will have our pool approval where we could submit and entire plan including their proof of letter and all that is in there especially in our engineering report.  It’s spelled out specifically as in accordance to Westchester County Law.

Mr. John Klarl stated Madame Chair if I could put it in perspective time wise.  This first appeared on our agenda on June 7th and the applicant I think will acknowledge that that night they asked for expedited review of this to build the pool and this Board exercising its judgment, its cautions and prudence went through some issues in July, went through some issues in August before we’d even allow a public hearing.  Back in June they wanted expedited review but this Board said we have to look at the issues that really come up from the improvements that they want to add and we’ve done so.  We haven’t rubber stamped it.

Mr. Bill Sattler stated last time you asked me to please make sufficient submission to the Department of Health.  So, I not only made submissions for the pool but the snack bar, and the gym building as well.  They have submissions for the entire project of which they’ll offer input as well and if they have any concerns they’re not shy, they will let us know what they are and we’ll have to address them.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked Mr. Fischer, one question for you, let me accept the fact that your Lawyer is going to come back, your Attorney, and say that he disagrees with what our Attorney says.  Where do we go from there?  We have our Board with our Attorney’s opinion and we have an outside and I’ve been on this Board for 22 years and I know that’s what’s going to happen.  I’ve seen this before so I’m trying to save you some money here.  I accept the fact that your Attorney is going to say “no more development on this.”  I accept that.  I know it.  And, I have my Town Attorney here and our Council on the Board reviewing our documents and, quite honestly, intimate with the documents over the last 10 years, 8 years, saying something different.  What do we do?

Mr. Andrew Fischer responded I don’t know.  If the other Attorney has a different opinion and this Board goes and approves…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I’m sitting here right now knowing that they’re going to say “his interpretation is wrong,” and he disagrees with his interpretation.

Mr. Andrew Fischer responded I guess it would be subject to a legal challenge then.  If you approve it and another entity believes that the Board acted incorrectly then it can go and get a legal challenge.  I don’t know the details of how that gets flushed out.  I really don’t.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I’m just trying to save you some money.

Mr. Andrew Fischer responded okay. 

Mr. John Bernard asked are there any other comments from the public, from the applicant?  Any comments from the Board?  If you’ll bear with me I have one question that maybe John Klarl or Tom Wood can answer and that’s this 25% lot coverage.  On this particular instance with the Golf Club does that include, obviously buildings, and it would include impervious surfaces like golf pathways?

Mr. John Klarl responded generally we’ve done it that way.  Tom brought the Special Permit legislation tonight and we looked at it and it doesn’t specifically say that but generally we’ve looked at that.
Mr. John Bernard asked so, like in a house it would be the driveway, the impervious surface?

Mr. Tom Wood responded and sidewalk.

Mr. John Bernard asked so in the construction of a golf course most of the surfaces of the fairway are impervious.  That’s the way they’re treated as far as run off calculations go, they’re treated as impervious surfaces.

Mr. Bill Sattler stated fairways are pervious.

Mr. John Bernard no, impervious because of the fact that they are basically hard packed and they do have grass growing on them but the run-off is almost, it’s within 85% of the run off on a driveway.

Mr. John Klarl asked really?

Mr. Ed Vergano asked are you talking about the greens?

Mr. John Bernard stated I would pose it that most of the golf course it has been built on that the tees and the greens are especially constructed for drainage, I would give you that, but the fairways I would think would go into that 25% building coverage, but I don’t know.  That’s why I’m asking the question.

Mr. John Klarl stated we certainly haven’t made that interpretation previously.

Mr. Bill Sattler stated John, I would beg to differ because usually the fairways are constructed in such a way that drainage is controlled, not by run-off, but by absorption and channeling.  So, they are pervious surfaces. 

Mr. John Bernard stated well, I beg to differ.  I’m sure that I can come up with the information for you that the run-off would be practically the same as an asphalt driveway.

Mr. Bill Sattler responded that would be interesting.

Mr. John Bernard stated it is interesting because most of the time we look at these lawns and we think “oh well, that’s a pervious surface that won’t add to storm water run-off.”  But, the actual truth is that they don’t act that way.

Mr. Bill Sattler responded roofing, and asphalt, the macadam are impervious surfaces, but soil by nature…

Mr. John Bernard stated uncompacted soil, healthy soil that has organics added to it, yes they drain very well.  Hard packed soil that grows grass doesn’t drain well.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated John, if you have information I’d like to see that myself because certainly when you’re on a golf course and you take a divot it’s hard to think that it’s impervious, believe me.

Mr. John Bernard stated I would have to agree with that but anyway that is just something that I’m curious how that calculation would factor in just for the coverage of the golf course and the 25% restriction.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated the DEC defines impervious surfaces.  We’ll look it up for you.

Mr. John Bernard stated and speaking to Mr. Wood’s letter, when I read the language and it says “golf club only, no building unless approved by the municipality,” to me, that says that we don’t even have the authority to vote on this that it really needs to go before the Town Board before we are allowed to look at this, because the municipality has not opined on whether or not they would approve increased building on the golf course. 

Mr. Bill Sattler asked would it be a stretch to say that the Planning Board is the approving municipality?
Mr. John Bernard responded I don’t think we dare call ourselves the municipality.

Mr. John Klarl stated the filed declaration defines “municipality” as the Town of Cortlandt.

Mr. John Bernard responded yes, and I would pose it that we really should not be voting on this until it comes back to us from the Town Board.

Mr. Bill Sattler stated so let’s propose it to them.

Mr. John Bernard stated that’s really up to our legal opinion.

Mr. John Klarl stated what we’ll do is we’ll take a look at that issue John for and we’ll give you a memo.

Mr. Bill Sattler stated we wouldn’t want to leave any stone unturned.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated seems we have a lot to look at.  I think if there’s nothing else on this for tonight anyway, we’ll entertain a motion to adjourn and we will revisit this at the next meeting.

Mr. Bill Sattler stated we thank you.  We’ve certainly taken more than our fair share of time and we thank the Board for that and we’ll see you next month.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I just want to make sure that it’s okay for the Board that we seek out outside environmental assistance to be funded by the applicant, somebody like LBG to look over some of these issues?  I just want to make sure that’s on the record.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think that’s pretty much the thinking of the Board.

Mr. John Bernard stated Madame Chairwoman I move that we adjourn this public hearing to our next meeting.

Seconded.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated on the question, is there any more time that we can add or you can add to your memo regarding what was said tonight in terms of further said quote evidence or information that would convince us as to what the right legal opinion is.  Because, I’m pretty confused right now as to what is the right legal opinion on this.  I’ve heard both sides.  I try to think fairly and I’m not very clear right now as to where we stand on that.  Is there any further information that you could provide?

Mr. Tom Wood responded we’ll take a look at it for you, sure.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I guess at this point we’re looking at, first of all, whether the municipality i.e. the Town Board has to weigh in on this before we move further and then we’re going to take a look at these specific issues that have been raised here tonight and have an outside consultant funded by the applicant, take a look at some of these things and give us some responses.  Is there anything else that we need to be doing that I have not mentioned?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded the applicant will submit a long form.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated the long form yes, the applicant will do the long form for us.

With all in favor saying "aye." 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’ll see you guys next month.
PB 6-11      b.
Referral from the Town Board of a proposed Zoning Ordinance amendment with respect to outdoor storage as described in a memo from the Town Attorney dated May 23, 2011 and as outlined in a  draft document entitled “Outdoor Display and Sale of Merchandise” dated August
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated this is a public hearing.  If there’s somebody here who will need to address any of the issues concerning these Ordinances.  Please come up.  We’ll let the record show that there were no speakers here to address this particular item. 
Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Madame Chairwoman I move that we close the public hearing.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated so, if you recall with this one, the Town Attorney and staff prepared some language and then at the work session we modified that language and I think in staff’s opinion simplified it a little bit, set the 2,500 square foot threshold eliminated some other stuff which we discussed a little bit at the work session.  So, the question would be if the language of this is satisfactory what I would do is I would put it in a form of a Resolution, a recommendation back to the Town Board so the Town Board can go ahead and adhere to it or the alternative we would wait to October to do that.  I don’t know exactly the schedule.
Mr. John Klarl asked Chris, what’s the latest revision that you’re looking at?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded it’s in a review memo dated August 24th, 2011.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked so you’re asking how we want to proceed with this?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded all I’m saying if you just close the public hearing and direct us to prepare a Resolution for October, in essence the Resolution will be this language put into a recommendation to go to the Town Board.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I didn’t find any problem.  The problem actually, one has to do with construction, a sentence construction and the other has to do with the ‘cc’ at the bottom of the note but other than that I guess I thought that it looked okay to me.  I don’t know about the rest of the Board.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated my only issue is we always get into trouble, like with number 4, when you start saying that it’ll include and then somebody comes back and says “what about this because it wasn’t specifically said it was included?”

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked what about the limited – you weren’t objecting to the limited duration were you?  Just the specific identification?
Mr. Steven Kessler asked are you saying those things are limited durations?  

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded yes.  The idea was we were thinking that the concept is people are going to be putting soda or wood or windshield wiper fluid out but then there’s also the idea that a store may roll racks of clothes out for an end-of-season sale and we just thought an end-of-season sale, an overstock sales and liquidation sales, we wanted to make sure that those were permitted above and beyond the normal stuff.  The question came up when we were discussing it; is an end-of-season sale permitted by this?  And, we said yes.
Mr. Ed Vergano responded but it would still be included in the 10% limitation.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated if number 3 – I’m presuming that what they’re putting out for end-of-season is stuff that they’ve sold by the tenant or owner, in number 3.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked you think it’s redundant?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded yes, I guess.  It’s not like the CITGO is going to sell dresses, to have somebody wheel in some overstock stuff from somewhere else.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked so if we took 4 out and 3 would be the governing “merchandise sold by tenant or owner.  The retail premises shall be permitted to display” and then there’s dimensional requirements.

Mr. Steven Kessler responded right.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked can I just back up to number 3 since you were just talking about it?  I think, personally, that there’s something strange about the construction of that idea: “only merchandise sold by a tenant or owner of the retail premises shall be permitted to display their merchandise for sale.”  I guess I’m thinking if anything it could be “should be permitted to be displayed for sale.”  And, I’d like to make a recommendation if we take another closer look, could we say “only a tenant or owner of the retail premises shall be permitted to display merchandise for sale on the exterior of the premises?”  Rather than “shall be permitted to be displayed.”

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked what was that again?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded “only a tenant or owner of the retail premises shall be permitted to display merchandise for sale on the exterior of the premises.”

Mr. Steven Kessler asked taking out the word “there?”  Is that what you’re doing?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded I don’t know.  I’m just trying to get the idea.  Is that okay?  That was my recommendation.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked I guess what I’m saying is, can you direct us to put this in a Resolution so it doesn’t have to come back next month?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded yes.

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded yes, I would be willing to do that.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated motion is so amended.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that would become, I believe, Resolution 24-11 which would be in the form of a recommendation back to the Town Board.

Mr. John Klarl stated because we didn’t use the old 24-11.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked did you actually mention a Resolution in your motion?

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi responded I started to but Chris wanted to clarify it.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated so we closed the public hearing.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I closed the public hearing and then I amended it.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated you’re going to amend it to say…

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated that staff prepare a Resolution for the Town Board.



*



*



*
PUBLIC HEARINGS (ADJOURNED)

PB 12-10    a.
Application of Gas Land Holdings Corp, for Site Development Plan Approval and a Special Permit for a gas station/convenience store located on a 12,783 sq. ft. parcel of property located at 2148 Albany Post Road (Route 9A) as shown on an 11 page set of drawings entitled “Gas Land Cortlandt” prepared by the Chazen Companies latest revision dated August 10, 2011 and on a 2 page set of elevations prepared by Taconic Designs received on April 20, 2011.

Mr. John Klarl stated Madame Chair can I give a little preamble to this one since this is before the Planning Board and the Zoning Board?  As I said, we have a Planning Board application tonight for a site plan.  This applicant is before the Zoning Board and the applicant was before the Zoning Board just two weeks ago, at the August Zoning Board of Appeals meeting.  At the August Zoning Board of Appeals meeting the Zoning Board of Appeals was wondering if the applicant could push the building back a little bit more than the Planning Board even has and the applicant also explained to the Zoning Board of Appeals that they had shrunk the canopy but they wanted to move it back.  The engineer for the applicant said we could look at it.  Then we saw a memo from the applicant’s engineer a couple of days later saying if she moved back the building any more, she would lose parking and parking’s critical on the site.  The Zoning Board of Appeals liked where the Planning Board was, it was thinking about pushing it a little bit farther but it doesn’t sound like it can be done and the Zoning Board of Appeals doesn’t know that yet because – they might know by a memo but they haven’t met since the August meeting.
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked did you want to say anything to follow up with anything?
Ms. Margaret McMannis stated Mr. Hoch pretty much covered the whole issue so the site plan stands as it did the last time I was before the Board last month.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated just one other item.  I think you might have the ARC’s signed off on the elevations.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’re going to continue the adjournment until we get some better sense of where the Zoning Board is on this.  They seem to be waiting for us and we’re waiting for them.

Mr. John Klarl stated this Board pretty much indicated how they want the site developed.  The Zoning Board of Appeals now has to look at it dimensionally – there’s 5 Variances or so?

Ms. Margaret McMannis responded the Zoning Board of Appeals was very supportive of the application.  They liked what they saw.  They thought that we may be able to, by moving the building, move the canopy additionally off of Route 9.  It really doesn’t work out.  Even if I would move the building five feet, it would only move the canopy two feet and it would impact the parking.

Mr. John Klarl stated we didn’t want to close the Planning Board in case the Zoning Board of Appeals did something more that changed the site plan and it has to come back to us then we have to reopen our public hearing.  We thought we’d adjourn here from the Zoning Board of Appeals and probably the next time out?

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated even tonight, although I could tell how it was going, I have a draft Resolution but I didn’t bother distributing it.  At the last meeting before some of the Zoning stuff happened we were directed to have one in abeyance.  So, even if you adjourn this case until October there’ll still be a Resolution.  If you close the hearing in October you could also, if you want, approve it in October.

Mr. John Klarl asked so it’s adjourned to October?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded it’s adjourned until October, then you can either close or not close but if you want to close you can actually approve it in October because there’ll be a Resolution.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated Madame Chair I move that we adjourn the public hearing until October.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 3-09      b.
Public Hearing: Application of Ryan Main LLC, c/o Finklestein-Morgan, for a recommendation to the Town Board for a Special Permit for Residential Re-Use, and for Site Development Plan Approval and for Wetland, Steep Slope and Tree Removal permits for the construction of 56 residential units to replace the existing 56 units on a 19.3 acre site located on the south side of Route 6 and the west side of Regina Avenue as shown on a 15 page set of drawings entitled “Special Land Use Permit for Pondview Commons on the Boulevard” prepared by Cronin Engineering latest revision dated April 20, 2011 (see prior PB 26-96).


Mr. Brad Schwartz stated from Zarin and Steinmetz on behalf of the applicant.  We’re here tonight for a continuation of the public hearings and we’re certainly able to answer any questions anyone might have.  We also know your Board has before you a draft negative declaration under SEQRA and a draft Resolution to refer this matter back to the Town Board for consideration of the Special Permit application.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated this is a public hearing.  If anybody has something that they’d like to say to address this particular application, now is the time.  Please come forward, identify yourself and state your case.  It looks like we have no speakers for this particular application.  I need to bring up too that there was another special memo from the Town Attorney regarding some questions that came up.  

Mr. John Klarl stated I think we were going to receive and file that memo.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we can receive and file it and then we would close the public hearing on the Special Permit.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chair I first would like to receive and file the memo from Town Attorney Tom Wood dated August 22nd, 2011.  Secondly, I’d like to make a motion that we close the public hearing for the Special Permit and third motion that we adjourn the public hearing for the Site Development Plan approval and the Wetland and Steep Slope and Tree Removal Permits.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chair I would like to propose that we adopt draft Resolution #25-11 regarding the Special Permit.

Seconded.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated what I said at the work session, I just want to state for the record here is that the Resolution says that it’s recommended to the Town Board that the Special Permit be conditioned on a road connection to the Cortlandt Town Center being completed as part of the Site Plan approval.  My concern is that this can still be approved without that and I just want to say very strongly, that to me is a necessary and sufficient condition as part of this approval and certainly down the road, no pun intended, Baker Street also critically important, but certainly at the very least the connection to the Town Center.  This thing should not go forward by the Town Board without that condition 2 in place.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated I would add to that Ed if we could have by the next meeting any mitigation plans that are being considered for putting that it.  I would like to have that on the record as well. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated sure.

With all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked this applicant will be back whenever you’re done with the Town Board correct?

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder responded correct.

Mr. Brad Schwartz asked is the neg. dec. being voted on separate or is that part of the Resolution?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded it really wasn’t.

Mr. John Bernard stated we didn’t address that.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we didn’t address it.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated the neg. dec. might be done separately.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated one more motion.  I’d like to move that we adopt the neg. dec. for this action.

Seconded. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated on the question, I have one quick thing I want to point out on page 3, about the third paragraph down, there’s something here that makes me think that we had the wrong word when we say that we’ll “provide the residents the option of going through the Cortlandt Town Center to a signal-controlled intersection with Route 6 in order to make right turns onto Route 6.”

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded left.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked it should be left, isn’t it?  Okay, so we need to fix that word because that’s the whole reason we went through all this.  We them to be able to make left turns.  The third page.  It’s just past the middle of the page, the third line in that piece.  It’s not “right turns” but left turns.

Mr. John Klarl stated so it says “Route 6 in order to make left turns onto Route 6.”

With all in favor saying "aye." 


*



*



*
OLD BUSINESS 
PB 7-11      a.
Referral from the Town Board dated July 21, 2011 of a proposed Zoning Ordinance amendment with respect to changing parking requirements and public hearing requirements for the Planning Board on referrals from the Town Board.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated if you recall we gave that to you at the work session but we really just gave it to you at the work session.  It wasn’t in the packet that you got mailed to you and you all were going to carefully review prior to tonight’s meeting.  What you could conceivably do is just go ahead and close the public hearing if you wanted and then if you have additional questions you could adjourn that public hearing.
Mr. John Klarl asked so the public hearing for October?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded yes.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked how do you guys feel about scheduling the public hearing?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded obviously this has to do with keeping your flexibility with respect to parking.  The other issue is you will no longer be mandated to have public hearings on referred amendments to the Zoning Ordinance from the Town Board.  It would still come to you, you would still discuss it but you wouldn’t have to have a public hearing.  That’s in here as well.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we haven’t really discussed it at this point.  Do you want to go?

Mr. Peter Daly responded why don’t we just schedule a public hearing?

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated why don’t we make the motion to set up a public hearing for this particular piece because I think we can get through this and any questions at the public hearing next time. 

Mr. John Klarl stated October.

Mr. Peter Daly stated Madame Chairwoman I move that we set up a public hearing for this amendment for October 4th.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’ll have a public hearing on this on the 4th.  You guys be careful to read every word of this.



*



*



*
NEW BUSINESS 
PB 8-11      a.
Application of Vision Property Group, LLC, for the property of William Geis Jr., for Site Development Plan Approval for the construction of an approximately 18,000 sq. ft. retail building located on the south side of Cortlandt Boulevard, east of the entrance to the Cortlandt Town Center (formerly Geis Toyota), as shown on a drawing entitled “Preliminary Site Plan” prepared by Joel Greenberg, R.A. dated August 24, 2011.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked do you want to discuss this Mr. Greenberg?
Mr. Joel Greenberg stated I think you all know the building.  It’s the old Toyota building.  My clients now wish to turn that into a series of stores with a small addition on it.  The good thing about it is we’re proposing to – there’s two curb cuts on Route 6, we want to cut that down to just one curb cut right turn in, right turn out.  The other good thing is, Mr. Geis wisely made an arrangement with the Cortlandt Town Center people to have access from this property onto the Cortlandt Town Center road so people who want to go west towards Peekskill will be able to go down to the traffic light and make that left turn.  The interaction at the curb that we’re proposing basically, as I said, is a right turn in, right turn out.  We have actually, believe it or not, approximately half of the units, not in contract, but certainly interested people that are definitely interested in renting these spaces.  We look forward to a review memo and to public hearing discussion with you.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked how do we determine, even though the Town Center agreed to the curb cut, that’s really viable still?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded I’ll get a letter from them.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked no, no but how do we know we still want to have it, that it’s still viable to continue to have that curb cut there?

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded it’s not there now.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked I know it’s not there – how do we know it’s viable to actually put one in there, that it’s going to work?  We talked about the thing behind Wendy’s.  The one up on the Town Center.  Who’s going to make that determination?  Do we need a traffic consultant and start measuring things?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded [inaudible]

Mr. Joel Greenberg stated in other words on the upper right hand corner there, as Ed said, because I had reviewed this with staff and it appears that the proposal behind the Wendy’s and the Mobil station will be right opposite ours.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I guess my issue more is the people coming around the curve coming out of the Town Center and you’ve got people – I don’t know what the sight distance is there.

Mr. Ed Vergano asked [Inaudible]
Mr. Joel Greenberg responded yes.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated [inaudible]

Mr. Joel Greenberg stated actually the reason we had it there was to make the right turn so that…

Mr. Steven Kessler asked you care more about the right turn than the coming in from the Town Center?

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded actually, what we talked about, if you recall there’s quite a bit of Q-ing that can go from the traffic light from Route 6 to our curb cut but what we talked about was a possibility of – and as somebody mentioned about people coming down out of the Cortlandt Town Center, is to put some kind of let’s say a stop sign there so that it will be like a two-way stop or a three-way stop if Wendy’s comes out there.  Again, we can discuss that with a traffic consultant but I think it’s a good idea and we’ll make the project more viable.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated the other thing to be aware of given some issues we’ve had in the past is even though you’re saying that sort of the Geis Toyota building is going to remain and you’re adding on to it, I would think that I’m going to be referring this to – it’s a new construction.  That may go.

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded I just meant that the proposed building is larger than the old Geis building.  A good part of it will have to go.  

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked you’re looking at particular kinds of tenants?

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded right now we have a possible JCN, a vitamin place that wants a substantial amount, there’s also a possibility of it’s either AT&T or Verizon is also interested in a large portion of the space. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated they just opened up something in the Cortlandt Town Center.

Mr. Joel Greenberg responded I’m just telling you what I know.  

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’re going to refer this back and we’ll need a motion to do that.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Madame Chair I’ll move that we refer this back, receive and file this and refer it back to staff.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 



*



*



*
ADJOURNMENT

Mr. Peter Daly stated Madame Chairwoman you have a motion to adjourn.
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Next Meeting: TUESDAY OCTOBER 4, 2011

I, SYLVIE MADDALENA, a Transcriptionist for the Town of Cortlandt as a subcontractor, do hereby certify that the information provided in this document is an accurate representation of the Planning Board meeting minutes to the best of my ability.
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